
 London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

Finance, Commercial Revenue and 
Contracts Policy & Accountability 

Committee 
 

Agenda 
 

Monday 23 September 2019 at 7.00 pm 
Meeting Room 1 (2nd Floor) - 3 Shortlands, Hammersmith, W6 8DA 

 

MEMBERSHIP 
 

Administration Opposition 

Councillor PJ Murphy (Chair)   
Councillor Patricia Quigley     
Councillor Fiona Smith     
Councillor Guy Vincent 
 

Councillor Donald Johnson 

Co-optees 

Tony Boys 
Erik Hohenstein 
Chris Littmoden 
Judith Worthy 

 

 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: Kayode Adewumi 

Head of Governance and Scrutiny 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 0208 753 2499 
 E-mail: kayode.adewumi@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 
Agendas are available on the Council’s website: www.lbhf.gov.uk/committees 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend. A loop system for hearing impairment 
is provided, along with disabled access to the building. 
 

Date Issued: 16 September 2019 

mailto:kayode.adewumi@lbhf.gov.uk
https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/committees


London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Finance, Commercial Revenue and Contracts 
Policy & Accountability Committee 

Agenda 
 

23 September 2019 
 
Item  Pages 

1.   MINUTES  4 - 11 

 To approve the minutes of the previous meeting, held on 2 July 2019, as 
an accurate record. 
 

 

2.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 If a Councillor has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a particular item, whether 
or not it is entered in the Authority’s register of interests, or any other 
significant interest which they consider should be declared in the public 
interest, they should declare the existence and, unless it is a sensitive interest 
as defined in the Member Code of Conduct, the nature of the interest at the 
commencement of the consideration of that item or as soon as it becomes 
apparent.  
 
At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in attendance and 
speak, any Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary interest or other significant 
interest may also make representations, give evidence or answer questions 
about the matter.  The Councillor must then withdraw immediately from the 
meeting before the matter is discussed and any vote taken.  
 
Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance and speak, 
then the Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary interest should withdraw from 
the meeting whilst the matter is under consideration. Councillors who have 
declared other significant interests should also withdraw from the meeting if 
they consider their continued participation in the matter would not be 
reasonable in the circumstances and may give rise to a perception of a conflict 
of interest.  
 
Councillors are not obliged to withdraw from the meeting where a dispensation 
to that effect has been obtained from the Audit, Pensions and Standards 
Committee. 

 

 

4.   BREXIT IMPACT REPORT  12 - 31 

 This briefing provides an update on the potential impact of Brexit on 
H&F and the mitigating actions being planned or developed. 
 

 

5.   CIVIC CAMPUS PROGRAMME - SEPTEMBER UPDATE  32 - 40 

 This report provides the Committee with an update on the Civic Campus 
Programme – the redevelopment of Hammersmith Town Hall and West 
King Street. 
 
 

 



 

6.   COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME  41 

 The Committee is asked to consider the items in the work programme 
and suggest any amendments or additional topics to be included in the 
future. 
 

 

7.   DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS   

 The following dates are proposed:  

 Wednesday 20 November 2019  

 Wednesday 29 January 2020  

 Wednesday 1 April 2020 

 

 



.  London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Finance, Commercial 
Revenue and Contracts 
Policy & Accountability 

Committee 
Minutes 

 

Tuesday 2 July 2019 
 

 

 
 

PRESENT 
 
Committee members: Councillors PJ Murphy (Chair), Patricia Quigley, 
Guy Vincent and Fiona Smith 
 
Co-opted members: Erik Hohenstein, Tony Boys, Judith Worthy  
 
Other Councillors: Councillor Stephen Cowan, Leader of the Council, Councillor 
Max Schmid, Cabinet Member for Finance and Commercial Services,  
 
Officers: Kim Smith (Chief Executive), Hitesh Jolapara (Strategic Director - 
Finance and Governance), Emily Hill (Assistant Director, Corporate Finance), Jo 
Rowland (Strategic Director – The Economy), Matt Patterson (Interim Head of 
Spatial Planning), David Burns (Assistant Director, Growth), Steve Miley (Director 
of Children’s Services),  Tony Burton Head of Finance – Children Services), 
(Prakash Daryanani, Head of Finance - Social Care), Veronica Barella (Chief 
Information Officer), Eduardo Whaley (Programme Manager),  Kayode Adewumi 
(Head of Governance & Scrutiny). 
 

 
1. MINUTES  

 
The minutes of the meetings held on 12 February and 27 March 2019 were 
approved and signed by the Chair. 
 

2. APPOINTMENT OF CO-OPTED MEMBERS  
 
The Committee agreed the appointment of Tony Boys, Erik Hohenstein, Chris 

Littmoden and Judith Worthy as co-optees for the 2019-20 municipal year. 
 

3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Chris Littmoden. 

Page 4

Agenda Item 1



 
4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

5. 2018/19 RESERVES OUTTURN REPORT  
 
Hitesh Jolapara reported that the Council’s accounts for 2018/19 were closed and 
subject to an audit.  The statutory deadline for closure was 31 May with external 
audit completed by 31 July.  Audit, Pensions and Standards Committee later in the 
month will consider the outcome of the audit. 
 
The movement in reserves and balances over recent years was noted. £32.7 million 
of General Fund earmarked reserves were spent in 2018/19.  The use of earmarked 
reserves included provision for NNDR movement due to technical adjustments, 
spending on approved projects, funding of the in-year general fund overspend and 
provision for the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) reserve.  The closing balance was 
now £62.3 million. 
 
The general balance stood at £19 million which represents 3.3% (equivalent to 12 
days spend) of the Council’s gross budget of £560 million.  The general balance 
should be maintained within the range of £14 million to £20 million over the next 3 
years to allow for the identified financial risks and support effective medium-term 
planning.  Officers are undertaking a review of all current reserve commitments. The 
reserves and general balances closing balance stood at £81.3 million. 
 
Councillor Vincent inquired how much had been set aside from reserves for the West 
King Street renewal programme and how much of the £62.3 million balance was at 
risk.  It was explained that additional work was required on use of reserves as 
officers were considering alternative funding options before use of reserves. The 
West King Street renewal programme would be funded at the point of expenditure.  
 
Councillor Schmid added that West King Street programme would be funded through 
the most economical advantageous funding streams available. We have not shown a 
commitment to use reserves because this would be a last resort.  The Town Hall 
project could be financed from CIL, S106 funding, profit from the JV, savings from 
not occupying the building such as utilities, business rates, capital etc and as a last 
resort use of reserves.  A use of reserves forecast and strategy will be agreed to 
protect the level.  
 
In response to a question about of £19.0 million represents 3.3% (equivalent to 12 
days spend) of the Council’s gross budget, Hitesh explained that £20 million was the 
average level maintained by other local authorities.   The general balances would not 
be touched.  Councillor Murphy asked why we are keeping money that we do not 
plan to spend.  Councillor Schmid explained that £19 million was a guarantee to 
residents that the Council would be able to continue providing essential services to 
vulnerable residents in the case of catastrophe.   The general balances act as a 
safety net for the organisation. 
 

Page 5



Action – Officers to submit an update report on reserves and future 
commitments. 
 
Action by – Hitesh Jolapara 
 
In response to Erik Hohenstein’s question about DSG reserves provision, it was 
noted that the £13 million was an accumulated overspend.  The Education and Skills 
funding Agency expects Councils to draft a 3-year recovery plan to recover their 
deficit.  Councillor Schmid recalled that the DSG overspend was one of the 5 
significant issues of concern raised at the Finance workshop.  The recovery plan’s 
objectives are to reduce the in-year deficit and the accumulated overspend.  
Unfortunately, all Councils are in a similar position.  An issue which the Government 
must address.   Hitesh noted that a letter had been sent by the Society of London, 
Municipal and County Treasurers to the Secretary of Education explaining the 
current position, their concerns about the level of funding and its impact on local 
authorities’ finances.   The Leader, Councillors Culhane and Schmid are also raising 
the issue directly with the Government.  
 
Action - A letter from the Finance PAC chair to be sent to Government 
outlining the difficulties we are experiencing due to the underfunding of 
dedicated schools grant. 
 
Action – Report on DSG shortfall to be discussed by both Children’s and 
Finance PACs. 
 
Action – Hitesh Jolapara and Steve Miley 
 
Councillor Smith inquired whether reserves would be used to fund the restoration of 
the Hammersmith Bridge.   The Leader stated that reserves would not be used for 
this purpose.  The strengthening work is required by TFL to enable double decker 
buses to cross the bridge.  Therefore, TFL would have to bear most of the costs.  If 
negotiations fail, the fall-back option would be to install a toll on the bridge, but 
residents would be exempt from such payment.  
 
Judith Worthy was pleased with the work done so far. She noted that the key was to 
get into a 5-year rolling forecast.  
 

6. SECTION 106 AGREEMENTS - UPDATE REPORT  
 
Emily Hill and Matt Patterson provided an update on section 106 (s106) agreements.   
 
The meeting noted that since 2014 the Council had negotiated over £600 million 
worth of funding through developer contributions as part of new developments in the 
borough.  This included financial and non-financial contributions received along with 
the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL).  The non-cash contributions covered 
provision of affordable housing, transport improvement and public realm schemes.  
Planning and finance officers monitor the programme through s106 Board where 
formal bids are assessed. Councillors Jones and Schmid sign off the final approvals. 
 

Page 6



The current available balance was £42m with a further £180.5m negotiated as 
potential future receipts.  There are currently £45m of approved commitments and £9 
million of earmarked commitments.  The 4 largest schemes signed over the last 12 
months amounted to £16.9 million.  Officers were confident of the current position 
and the monitoring that was in place. 
 
The Committee welcomed the report and inquired if there was a strategy which 
underpinned the expenditure.  Jo Rowland stated that the local plan and industrial 
strategy contained policies which drove the expenditure. Where necessary, officers 
can review old s106 agreements with a view to renegotiating whether they could be 
spent in line with current Council priorities.   
 
Councillor Quigley asked for clarification on how affordable housing provision was 
calculated as non-financial benefits.  Jo Rowland gave the example of Fulham Gas 
works which has a 35% affordable homes provision where the developer is required 
to build affordable housing as part of their scheme. Due to the need for affordable 
homes in the borough this has a benefit to the Council which can be quantified and 
considered as non-financial benefits. 
 
Action – A copy of the industrial strategy to be sent to Members. 
 
Action – Officers’ to provide a split between actual cash received and work 
which has a cash value. 
 
Action by – Joanne Woodward  
 

7. WEST KINGS STREET RENEWAL UPDATE  
 
David Burns and Emily Hill presented the update report. 
 
David reported that the overarching programme was green. There were risks rated 
amber due to the continuing risks around the decant programme though these are 
moving in a positive direction.  The 1st move took place successfully during the 14th 
– 17th June weekend.   
 
We are not expecting any issues with the Secretary of State’s approval for the sale 
of land.  We have informally been told that the Secretary of State’s approval may not 
be required.  The Deputy Mayor of London’s approval would be granted on 8th July.  
Full planning and listed building consent are now scheduled for the end of July 2019 
which does not impact on the project’s critical path.  Town Hall site demolition works 
would start in September and the construction works in February 2020.  The 
programme is currently deliverable within the approved programme budgets.  
 
In response to a question regarding project management approach, the Committee 
was informed that both the waterfall and agile approaches were used.  By December 
2019, the bottom line would be above the top line in the progress tracker.  A2 
dominion would employ a development manager and a clerk of works to ensure 
quality control.  Currie & Brown would provide the quality assurance and cost control 
work for the Council. 
 

Page 7



Councillor Murphy inquired about the contingency provision for the decant costs.  It 
was explained there is a contingency for the construction elements of the project. 
Members asked for clarification between the responsibilities for the Town Hall 
refurbishment and new Town Hall extension construction work. David noted that the 
JV was responsible for new Town Hall extension construction work in while the 
Council was responsible for the refurbishment. There was likely to be 1 contractor 
with 2 separate contracts for 1 project.  Both contracts would be managed by the JV 
acting as the development manager for the Council on the refurbishment element.  
  
In response to Councillor Murphy’s question regarding how the project would be 
funded, Emily noted that the £85 million project cost would be financed through 
multiple funding streams – CIL, S106 funding, profit from the JV, savings from the 
not occupying the building such as utilities, business rates, borrowing etc and as a 
last resort use of reserves.  David noted that the Council was putting its contribution 
into the JV via the land sale.  We have the authority to lend the JV up to £90 million 
to fund the development.  Any funds loaned to the JV would be at market rate.  They 
can seek funding from alternatives sources if they want to.  
 
In response to Councillor Quigley question about what the £85 million expenditure 
cover, it was reported that it included the decant and refurbishment costs. 
 
Councillor Schmid stated that members require a detailed knowledge of the scheme 
to scrutinise and track the progress.  This might come from discussions outside a 
formal meeting setting. Judith Worthy asked officers to think about the structure of 
the report and take on board the comments made particularly outlining where the 
money was coming from.  
 
Actions 
 

 Next update to include spend, sources of funding and funding risk. 

 Clarification of where the responsibility of the JV starts and stops. 

 Provide a diagram showing the JV and Council’s financial responsibilities and 
core elements. 

 Officers to split the contingency elements of the project. 

 Committee to receive quarterly update reports to reassure the Committee that 
the programme is on track. 

 
Action by – David Burns 
 
Councillor Schmid commended the officers for an excellent job done in managing the 
programme to date. 
 

8. BUILDING HOMES AND COMMUNITIES STRATEGY  
 
The Committee in February received a presentation on the Council’s approach to 
using its estate more economically.  David Burns reported that the new Homes and 
Community assets strategy element of the approach was approved by Cabinet on 1 
July.  Further aspects of the approach will be brought forward as they are developed. 
 

Page 8



Members noted that the programme sought to deliver approximately 1,800 homes 
over a period of up to ten years and generate long-term income to support the 
Council’s financial challenge.  The strategy will commit the Council to utilising its land 
and property assets to meet key administration priorities to deliver affordable 
housing and support the Council’s financial challenge.  
 
In welcoming the report, Councillor Vincent asked what the implications of the 
Government’s removal of the HRA borrowing cap and how much can we borrow 
under the new regime.  Officers responded that borrowing would be in line with the 
Council’s HRA Business plan and Asset management plan. We cannot calculate a 
maximum borrowing amount allowed at this time.  Officers told Councillor Murphy 
that we can fund the purchase of houses and building new ones with borrowing. 
However, this programme only covers new housing.  No existing units are involved. 
 
The Committee welcomed the report. 
 

9. TECH-TONIC PROGRAMME DELIVERY UPDATE - DESKTOP STRATEGY & 
SOLUTION  
 
Veronica Barella introduced the report noting that the programme covered the 
provision of a mobile device and smartphone for each officer and deliver a telephony 
strategy which supports flexible working.  This would involve the migration of 
applications, a new remote working solution, new network and telephony solutions, 
and the migration of all users to the new solution.  The total approved value of the 
programme is £6,214,304. The programme will deliver up to £1,400,000 savings 
annually on the IT Services budget by 2020/21.  The design and build of the 
Windows 10 image on computing devices was completed in November 2018.  1724 
laptops and 641 smartphones have been rolled out to Council officers to date.  She 
noted that several stakeholder user groups have been set up to assist with the rollout 
and upskilling programme. 
 
Councillor Quigley stated that she had been using one of the Toshiba laptops for a 
while and it has been a fantastic experience.  She can work from home with ease.  
She was delighted with the Council’s approach.   
 
Councillor Murphy asked how would officers keep the momentum going?  Veronica 
replied that the team leaders will be encouraged to share best practice across the 
Council.  Regarding the choice of equipment, extensive testing was undertaken on a 
wide range of devices.  The Toshiba devices met all our requirements and it comes 
with a 3-year warranty supported through a maintenance contract with BT.    
 
The Committee commented that this was a major cultural change programme which 
would affect how we work, how we manage staff who are working from home or in 
client’s house and monitor productivity. Services will need to redesign how they work 
to ensure that the 6:10 desk ratio is maintained. 
 
The Committee thanked the officers for their hard work. 
 

10. TASK GROUPS  
 

Page 9



Councillor PJ Murphy asked for comments on setting up Task and Finish Groups to 
strengthen the delivery of the PAC’s functions and ensure the experience of PAC 
Members are best used.   He noted that the Committee undertook a lot of scrutiny, 
but it needs some time to support officers to generate new ideas, think and work 
differently. The Groups would be forward looking chaired by a coopetee with officers 
and Councillors assigned to support them.   He had spoken to Kim and Hitesh to 
look at 3 main areas particularly the governance to support this work: - 
 

 Multi Year Financial Strategy  

 Efficiency & Productivity  

 Contracts & Commercial  
 
In welcoming the idea of setting up Task Groups, the following comments and issues 
were raised: - 
 
Erik Hohenstein welcomed the idea which would generate creative thinking but was 
concerned that the role would overlap with their scrutiny function. He requested for 
transparency in the work of the Groups.  Tony Boys was of the view that there were 
some areas the cooptees could help such as contracts management.  Judith Worthy 
noted that a collaborative structure was required.  We need to be clear about its 
status, so it does not undermine the scrutiny role.  She was uncomfortable with co-
optees being the Chair.  
 
Councillor Vincent asked officers to consider the cost/benefit of more reports and 
meetings.  Any new Groups should not be paper heavy conversations.  The Group 
could act as a critical friend to officers.  Councillor Quigley noted that it was a good 
idea for groups to be established.  She expressed concerns about conflict of interest 
and stressed that coopetes should not scrutinise their own work in the future.   
 
Regarding the scrutiny of zero-based budgeting (ZBB), Kim clarified that the scrutiny 
of ZBB fell within the remit of PSR PAC while the Finance PAC would look at 
efficiencies and savings. The Groups would have access to more detailed 
background information to enable Members build a better understanding of the 
subject matter and generate creative ideas.  Creating a space for more 
conversations and obtaining more from cooptees’ learning was important.  We are 
trying to get the governance right, so we would not undermine the formal scrutiny 
function.  Getting the balance right was key.   It would not be a formal meeting.  She 
identified contracts & commercial, multi-year financial strategy and efficiency & 
productivity as areas where groups could help.  
 
Hitesh noted that Rhian Davies (Monitoring Officer) was working on the governance 
particularly safeguarding the scrutiny/executive functions and to ensure that the right 
people would be part of the conversations. 
 
RESOLVED: - 
 
To establish a Task and Finish Group on Dedicated Support Grant with a 
membership of all cooptee Members supported by officers. 
 
The meeting was extended by 5 minutes before the guillotine fell at 10.00pm. 

Page 10



 
11. COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME  

 
The Committee noted its work programme. 
 
 

12. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  
 
The following dates for the new municipal year were noted:- 
 

 Wednesday 18 September 2019 
 Wednesday 20 November 2019 

 Wednesday 29 January 2020 

 Wednesday 1 April 2020 

 
 
 
The meeting was formally extended for 5 minutes. 

 
Meeting started: 7.00 pm 
Meeting ended: 10.01 pm 

 
 

Chairman   

 
 
 
 

Contact officer: Kayode Adewumi 
Head of Governance and Scrutiny 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 020 8753 2499 
 E-mail: kayode.adewumi@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

 

Page 11



London Borough of Hammersmith & 
Fulham 

 
FINANCE, COMMERCIAL REVENUE AND 

CONTRACTS POLICY AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
COMMITTEE 

 
23 September 2019 

 

 

BREXIT IMPACT REPORT 
 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Finance – Councillor Max Schmid 
 

Open Report 
 

Classification - For Information 
Key Decision: No 
 

Consultation 
All Council Departments 
 

Wards Affected: All 
 

Accountable Director: Hitesh Jolapara, Director of Public Service Reform 
 

Report Author: 
Peter Smith, Head of Policy and Strategy 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8753 2206 
E-mail: peter.smith@lbhf.gov.uk  
 

 
 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1. The attached Brexit Briefing paper is the latest in a series of briefings 

updating Cabinet Members on the potential impact of Brexit on H&F and the 
mitigating actions being planned or developed.  Attached, as Appendix 1, is 
Briefing No.9. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
2.1. The report is for information and discussion and makes no recommendations 

for the Committee to consider. 
 

3. REASONS FOR DECISION 
 

3.1. The report is for information and discussion.  It is not for decision. 
 
 
 
 

Page 12

Agenda Item 4

mailto:peter.smith@lbhf.gov.uk


4. PROPOSAL AND ISSUES  
 

4.1. The briefing sets out what the Council is doing to prepare for Brexit.  It does 
not make proposals for this Committee to consider. 

 
5. OPTIONS AND ANALYSIS OF OPTIONS  

 
5.1. The report is a briefing and does not present options for analysis. 

 
6. CONSULTATION 

 
6.1. The author of this report has consulted with all Council Departments in 

preparing the Brexit Briefings. 
 

7. EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 
 

7.1. The report is for information. There are no recommendations so there are no 
equality implications arising from this report. 

 

7.2. Implications verified by: Fawad Bhatti, Social Inclusion Policy Manager, tel. 
07500 103617. 
 

8. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

8.1. The report is for information and there are no legal implications arising from 
this report. 
 

8.2. Implications completed by: Kevin Beale, Senior Solicitor, tel. 020 8753 2740.  
 
9. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
9.1. There are many and varied potential financial implications of Brexit. The 

report sets out areas of financial risk including price inflation and interest 
rates, loss of funding and the impact of uncertainty and any slowdown in the 
wider economy on Council services and regeneration. Officers will continue to 
monitor and re-assess financial planning assumptions in these areas as 
further information becomes available. 
 

9.2. The report is for information. There are no recommendations so there are no 
direct financial implications arising from this report. 

 
9.3. Implications verified by Emily Hill, Assistant Director, Corporate Finance, 

telephone 020 8753 3145. 
 
10. IMPLICATIONS FOR LOCAL BUSINESS 
 
10.1. The report is for information. There are no recommendations so there are no 

implications for local business arising from this report.  The potential 
implications for business of Brexit are covered in the briefing paper. 

 

Page 13



10.2. Implications verified by: Albena Karameros, Economic Development Team, 
tel. 020 7938 8583.  

 
11. COMMERCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
13.1 The report is for information. There are no recommendations so there are no 

commercial implications arising from this report. 
 

13.2 However, industries such as construction, hospitality & catering, healthcare 
and retail sectors will be directly affected by Brexit.  Pay rates may have to 
increase (to attract resident workers) and this could affect the Council 
commercially as contract prices might increase.  

 
13.3 Implications verified/completed by: Andra Ulianov, Procurement Consultant, 

tel. 07776672876.  
 

12. IT IMPLICATIONS  
 

12.1. The report is for information. There are no recommendations so there are no 
ICT implications arising from this report.  
 

12.2. The potential risks arising from Brexit are in the paper and IT services is 
evaluating the impact on our service delivery.  
 

12.3. Implications verified/completed by: Veronica Barella, Chief information 
Officer, tel 020 8753 2927. 

 
13. RISK MANAGEMENT 

 
13.1 The risk of a ‘no-deal’ Brexit (Workforce, Housing, Contracts, Residents, 

Finances) was added to the Council’s Corporate Risk Register last year.  
 
13.2 The attached briefing paper sets out officers’ assessment of the potential 

impact of this risk on service delivery and details a range of current and 
planned mitigations which will be in place should this risk materialise.  This is 
the latest in a series of papers prepared to ensure that the Council is 
assessing the impact of the decision to leave the EU on 31 October 2019. 

 

13.3 Implications verified by: David Hughes, Director of Audit, Fraud, Risk and 
Insurance, tel: 020 7361 2389. 

 
14. BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 

None. 
 
LIST OF APPENDICES: 
Appendix 1: Brexit Briefing No.9 
Appendix 2: Corporate Brexit Issues Log 

Page 14



Brexit Briefing 

 

Briefing No 9: September Update on the Potential Impacts of Brexit in H&F and 

Mitigating Actions Being Planned or Developed 

 

1. Introduction 

 

1.1 The Brexit deadline is still 31 October but recent legislation now requires that 

the Prime Minister seek an extension to this deadline if there is no deal 

agreed by 19 October.   

 

1.2 If no withdrawal agreement is passed by both Parliament and the EU before 

31 October then we are facing a no-deal Brexit or a further extension.  This 

scenario is looking increasingly likely, given the very limited parliamentary 

time available to approve any new withdrawal agreement. 

 

1.3 If a withdrawal agreement is reached and ratified, it could include provisions 

for a transitional period, or implementation phase, which would extend the 

negotiating period for the future relationship.  It would provide time for 

negotiations on the future UK-EU relationship to continue before substantive 

change in the UK’s status takes place. 

 

2. Settled Status 

 

2.1 In March 2018 the Government and the EU agreed a reciprocal settlement 

scheme to safeguard the rights of EU nationals in the UK and British citizens 

in other EU states.  To be granted settled status, all EU citizens resident in the 

UK will need to apply online by June 2021.  Their rights will be protected up 

until the end of 2020.  There are an estimated 30,000 EU citizens resident in 

H&F.  The following Government website sets out the detail of the settled 

status arrangement and how to apply: https://www.gov.uk/settled-status-eu-

citizens-families/applying-for-settled-status. 

 

2.2 The reciprocal settled status agreement, however, is only secured if the UK 

and EU sign up to the Withdrawal Treaty, i.e. if an overall Brexit deal is 

negotiated.  In the event of a no-deal Brexit, the settled status agreement 

would fall and it would be up to individual nation states as to whether or not 

they choose to implement the settled status scheme.  The UK Government, 

has opted to progress a unilateral arrangement, whereby it progresses the 

online process of EU residents applying for settled status and retaining their 

rights under UK law.   

 

2.3 The online application process for the EU Settlement Scheme went live on 30 

March 2019.  The latest Government figures show that 8,300 H&F residents 

Page 15

https://www.gov.uk/settled-status-eu-citizens-families/applying-for-settled-status
https://www.gov.uk/settled-status-eu-citizens-families/applying-for-settled-status


Brexit Briefing 

 

had applied to the scheme by 30 June 2019.  H&F Council is operating a free 

scanning and verification service to all residents to assist with their 

applications to the Scheme.  This service is available from the Register Office 

at The Clockwork Building, Beavor Lane, Hammersmith.  As of 2 September 

2019, a total of 517 residents had used this service. 

 

2.4 The position for UK residents living in the EU is unclear as they would be 

subject to whatever decisions each of the 27 EU states came to as to whether 

or not they choose to unilaterally implement the settled status scheme.  

Where EU states choose not to implement the scheme, we might see the 

return of significant numbers of, largely, elderly UK citizens from those states, 

with accompanying housing and care needs. 

2.5 A strapline at the bottom of the H&F website directs EU citizens to where they 

can learn about the Settlement Scheme and access any advice and support 

they may need. 

 

3. Workforce 

 

3.1 The government has said that there will be strict controls on unskilled 

migrants (EU and non-EU) entering Britain after Brexit and earning less than 

£30,000 per annum.  This will directly affect the construction, hospitality & 

catering, healthcare and retail sectors.  Pay rates may have to increase (to 

attract resident workers) and this could affect the inflation rate (and, therefore, 

potentially, interest rates). 

 Table 1: High impact employment sectors 

Sector Number of employees 
in H&F in 2017 

Proportion of total 
employees in H&F 

Construction 
 

3,500 2.6% 

Retail 
 

15,000 11.1% 

Accommodation and 
Food Services 

11,000 8.1% 

Healthcare 
 

12,000 8.9% 

N.B. These figures relate to jobs located in H&F not to employees resident in the borough.  

Some of these employees will be resident elsewhere. 

  

Page 16



Brexit Briefing 

 

Construction and development 

 

3.2 Construction contractors and developers that officers are in contact with are 

concerned about the effect that Brexit could have on recruitment and 

retention.  Data produced by Build London indicates that, on the Thames 

Tideway project alone, the majority of the workforce recruited is from Eastern 

Europe, i.e. non-UK nationals. 

Social care 

 

3.3 The national analysis of the potential impact of Brexit on social care providers 

looks bleak: 

 Ending freedom of movement after Brexit could result in 115,000 fewer 

adult social care workers by 2026, according to a report by Global Future 

published in August 2018; 

 There are at present 1.3 million care workers in the UK, but an estimated 

2 million will be needed by 2035 to cope with the rising number of elderly 

people; 

 A report on future migration patterns by the independent Migration 

Advisory Committee, published in October 2018, found that one in 17 

social care staff (5.9%) were from the EU in 2017, with staff from new 

member states making an increasing contribution to the workforce. 

 

“The combination of rising demand, downward pressure on public spending 

leading to relatively low wages making many jobs relatively unattractive to 

resident workers, and the absence of a non-EEA (European Economic Area) 

work-related route for the lower-skilled roles in the sector mean that this is a 

sector that could face even more serious problems if EEA migration was 

restricted.”  

(Global Future report on the impact of Brexit on the social care workforce, August 

2018) 

 

3.4 H&F’s three main homecare providers; Sage, Mi Homecare and CRG, have 

anywhere between 11-21% of their workforce from EU countries and they all 

pay London Living Wage, in accordance with contractual requirements.  

These three contractors provide 81% of the Council’s homecare services. 

3.5 Officers are actively assessing the potential impact of social care provision in 

the event of a no-deal Brexit and service providers are supplying their 

contingency plans. 

3.6 The biggest concern of H&F commissioners is around residential care homes, 

and the potential impact on nursing.  Official figures show that the number of 

nurses from the EU registering to work in the UK dropped by 96%, less than a 

year after the Brexit vote, so this will compound the existing challenges 

Page 17



Brexit Briefing 

 

around recruiting nurses to work in care homes and finding suitably skilled 

and qualified nursing home managers. 

3.7 The table below shows the potential impact on social care budgets of 

increased costs that may result from labour shortages and other inflationary 

pressures arising from Brexit. 

    Risk 

Service Area 

Project 

spend as at 

August 

2019 1% 2% 3% 

  £000's £000's £000's £000's 

Placements 24,800 248 496 744 

Packages 13,816 138 276 414 

Direct 

Payments 8,427 84 169 253 

Total 47,043 470 941 1,411 

 

 

4. Goods and Services 

 

Housing and construction 

 

4.1 The H&F Local Plan commits the Council to building at least 22,000 new 

homes in the borough by 2038.  At any one time, over 1300 households are in 

temporary accommodation in Hammersmith and Fulham, awaiting permanent 

housing in the borough.  The construction industry relies heavily on foreign 

migrant labour for skilled and non-skilled roles - in London 28% of 

construction workers are non-UK EU nationals (ONS, June 2018).   

 

4.2 It is feared that outside of the EU, which guarantees the right to free 

movement, the skills shortage could worsen.  If immigration is limited, 

particularly for skilled workers, the UK could witness higher project costs 

where labour demand outstrips supply.  This could severely reduce 

housebuilding in the UK; potentially deepening the housing crisis, especially in 

London. 

 

Page 18



Brexit Briefing 

 

4.3 Alternatively, if global investors start to take their money out of the UK 

property market, this could lead to a collapse in house prices in inner London 

areas like H&F. 

 

Supply chain 

 

4.4 Business Continuity and Corporate Procurement are identifying clusters of 

corporate contracts (e.g. food, IT, construction, care and medical equipment) 

that may be more sensitive to no-deal Brexit changes. 

 

4.5 A cross-departmental Service Resilience Group (SRG), consisting of the core 

Directors from the Strategic Leadership Team, is forming strategies around 

contingencies for partial or whole loss of critical suppliers, such as sourcing 

from alternative markets and gaining insight of the local area distribution 

network. The SRG meets quarterly and its last meeting took place on 2 

September, chaired by the Chief Executive. 

 

4.6 In addition to the SRG, a ‘Tiger Team’ has been formed with specific Assistant 

Directors given lead responsibility for making urgent decisions in key areas of 

the council’s operations, i.e.: Finance; Workforce; Community Cohesion; 

Housing and homelessness; Supply chain; Education; Regulatory, and; 

Demand for services. 

 

4.7 With changes to the council’s IT network, all services have been requested to 

either refresh or complete new Service Continuity Plans by 20 September to 

ensure that these are up to date with the roll out of new technology.  Many of 

these Plans have appended Brexit Plans and these will also be updated, as 

necessary. 

 

Health and social care 

 

4.8 The Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC) has undertaken an 

analysis of the supply chain for medicines, including radioisotopes and 

vaccines, which identified those products that are imported from the EU and 

the European Economic Area (EEA). Without a deal, the supply chains for 

these products may be affected by changes to border processes and 

procedures. 

 

4.9 To address this issue DHSC is working with the relevant marketing 

authorisation holders to ensure that UK stockpiles of medicines are adequate 

to cope with any potential delays at the border that may arise in the short 

term. 

 

Page 19



Brexit Briefing 

 

4.10 In the event we leave the EU without a deal, based on the current cross-

government planning scenario, the Government hopes to ensure the UK has 

an additional 6 weeks’ supply of medicines in case imports from the EU 

through certain routes are affected. This is the current planning assumption 

but will, of course, be subject to revision in light of future developments. 

 

4.11 DHSC are, therefore, asking pharmaceutical companies that supply medicines 

for NHS patients from, or via, the EU or EEA, to ensure they have a minimum 

of 6 weeks’ additional supply in the UK, over and above their business as 

usual operational buffer stocks, by 31 October 2019.  The DHSC is also 

working with industry to improve trader readiness in preparation for the new 

customs procedures that will come into force on day 1 if we leave the EU 

without a deal: 

 changing or clarifying regulatory requirements so that companies can 

continue to sell their products in the UK if we leave with no deal; 

 arrangements to deal with shortages; 

 in addition to normal shortage management routes, enabling ministers to 

issue serious shortage protocols to pharmacists. 

 

4.12 All these arrangements echo the plans put in place ahead of 29 March and 

will be essential to the continuation of medicines and medical products if the 

UK leaves the EU without a deal. 

 

4.13 The Department continues to centrally coordinate contingency measures to 

mitigate risks to supply.  This removes the need for any stockpiling at local 

level, which could cause medicine shortages and put patient care at risk. 

 

4.14 The DHSC has launched the Medicines Supply Contingency Planning 

Programme. Through this programme the Government is seeking information 

about contingency plans put in place in respect of medicines that meet a 

relevant criterion.  

 

4.15 Separately, they recognise that there are some products that have short shelf 

lives and cannot be stockpiled. Where such products are at present imported 

to the UK from the EU/EEA via road haulage and roll-on, roll-off sea, road and 

rail routes, DHSC is asking suppliers to ensure they have plans in place to air 

freight those products to avoid any border delays that may arise in the event 

of a no-deal exit from the EU.  

 

4.16 The programme covers products that are prescription-only medicines and 

pharmacy-only medicines that come from or via the EU/EEA via road haulage 

and roll-on, roll-off sea, road and rail routes. 

 

Page 20



Brexit Briefing 

 

 

5. EU Legislation 

5.1 EU law and regulation underpins many council services (such as waste and 

environmental standards).  The Withdrawal Act 2018 provided for all EU law 

to be brought into UK law to ensure that there was legal certainty for 

businesses and residents. The Withdrawal Act is now law and this legal 

certainty would remain in place even under a no-deal exit.  However, many 

UK laws refer to EU regulations or to EU agencies.  The Withdrawal Act gives 

ministers the ability to amend such laws where EU institutions or processes 

are mentioned. 

5.2 Given the number of Statutory Instruments that are required it is not currently 

clear whether all changes will be communicated via the no-deal technical 

papers or through direct communications by Government departments to 

relevant professional bodies or directly to councils. 

 

6. Communities 

 

6.1 To date officers have not seen any evidence in their work with communities, 

through tenant and resident associations (TRAs) or consultation activities and 

events, that Brexit has affected community cohesion in H&F.  We encourage 

TRAs to work with all residents in their community and it may well be that we 

run a series of community focussed events to celebrate the diversity of our 

estates, and the wealth of nationalities across our borough.  The CommUNITY 

Day event of 21 July, held in Ravenscourt Park, was very much focussed on a 

celebration of the borough’s diversity in the shadow of Brexit. 

 

6.2 If problems in the supply chain should lead to a shortage of basic and vital 

items – foodstuffs, medicines etc – this may lead to social unrest.  Early 

indications could be captured via Tension Monitoring, possibly on a weekly 

basis, using social media as an early warning sign.  The Prevent teams 

across London are monitoring community tensions on a regular basis in the 

run up to Brexit and will continue to do so post-Brexit. 

6.3  The Government has issued Brexit community engagement guidance for local 

authorities. The guidance, including case studies from other authorities, is 

located here - https://www.gov.uk/guidance/community-engagement-and-eu-exit-

guidance-for-local-authorities  

 

6.4 The Government has also issued a public information campaigns toolkit: 

https://wetransfer.com/downloads/775d7a825e15eafaea9d4596c0870fed2019032109532

1/4be9ca1ecf1532b223e6f070d494205b20190321095321/2664be 

Page 21

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/community-engagement-and-eu-exit-guidance-for-local-authorities
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/community-engagement-and-eu-exit-guidance-for-local-authorities
https://wetransfer.com/downloads/775d7a825e15eafaea9d4596c0870fed20190321095321/4be9ca1ecf1532b223e6f070d494205b20190321095321/2664be
https://wetransfer.com/downloads/775d7a825e15eafaea9d4596c0870fed20190321095321/4be9ca1ecf1532b223e6f070d494205b20190321095321/2664be


Brexit Briefing 

 

 

7. EU Funding 

 

7.1 In terms of English for Speakers of Other Languages (ESOL) Functional Skills 

(maths and English and ICT) provision, our Adult Learning and Skills Service 

was funded by the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) grant up until 

August 2019, when the budget was devolved to the London Mayor.  This 

funding amounts to £2.7m per year.  We are told that the sub-regions, in our 

case West London, will continue to receive the current level of funding up to 

2021, after which there is no guarantee that funding will continue.  The H&F 

Adult Learning and Skills Service is currently the second highest recipient of 

the ESFA budget in West London, but that is likely to change after 2021, when 

we are likely to have a reduction if the devolution is based on the West 

London demographics of deprivation. 

 

7.2  With regard to the London Mayor’s Skills and Adult Education Strategy for 

Londoners, the Mayor has given guarantees to prioritise the following in 

relation to substitutes for European Social Fund (ESF) funding: 

 those with poor basic skills – English, maths and ESOL; 

 those at risk of redundancy from automation and other digital changes; 

 parents and care leavers, particularly those who are long-term 

unemployed or stuck in low paid/insecure work, providing support with 

childcare where possible; 

 people with special educational needs and disabilities (SEND); 

 Black, Asian and minority ethnic groups; 

 people who are long-term unemployed (i.e. for more than 12 months) and 

economically inactive and/or cycling in and out of work; 

 people who face complex barriers including those who are homeless, 

facing drug and/or alcohol addiction, and ex-offenders. 

 

7.3 Environmental improvement projects, such as the sustainable drainage 

systems (SuDS) on Queen Caroline Estate and Maystar Estate, were funded 

by the EU Life project.  From October 2019 we will not be able to apply to this 

funding stream anymore.  Our two improvement budgets, Housing Estate 

Improvement Projects [run by Groundwork] and the Neighbourhood 

Improvement Fund, use Housing Revenue Account funds. 

 

7.4 H&F received no direct EU grant funding for either capital or revenue 

schemes in 2018/19 and none is budgeted in 2019/20. 

 

 

  

Page 22



Brexit Briefing 

 

8. Wider Economic Impacts 

 

8.1 At a high-level there are several specific financial risks regarding a no-deal 

Brexit.  The potential for short and medium-term disruption includes: 

 Inflation - this is likely to increase due to a potential fall in the value of the 

pound, the impact of tariffs, supply chain concerns and labour shortages; 

 An economic slowdown - tariffs and supply chain concerns could disrupt 

trade whilst some businesses may decide to relocate to the EU zone or 

reduce plans for UK investment; 

 Worse public finances - lower growth will mean less funding for public 

services; 

 EU firms with a presence in H&F – European businesses operating in the 

borough may leave or reduce their footprint over time, resulting in fewer 

jobs and knock-on effects for local businesses through lower demand and 

changes to supply chains.  

 

8.2  The extent to which each of the above factors impacts on the Council 

depends on their depth and duration.  As examples: 

 Each extra 1% of inflation will lead to a cost pressure of £0.8m per annum 

for H&F Council wages and £2m for supplies and services and payments 

to others; 

 An economic slowdown would impact on a range of services and income 

budgets.  For example, planning income, land charges income and 

business rates income could all decline, while the cost of the local council 

tax support scheme and the costs to the Council of addressing 

homelessness would be likely to increase;  

 Worsening of public finances may result in longer and deeper cuts to 

government funding.  Local authority funding has not received the 

protection provided to health or police budgets; 

 The viability of regeneration initiatives might be affected.  Economic 

uncertainty, such as around housing values, may hamper regeneration 

initiatives or be impacted by adverse movements in long-term interest 

rates. 

 

8.3  Local authority finances are already under significant pressure from cuts of 

59p in the £ imposed by national government.  A National Audit Office report 

from last year emphasised that the financial position of the local authority 

sector, particularly for those authorities with social care responsibilities, has 

worsened markedly since 2014.  As set out above, in the short to medium 

term, a no-deal Brexit is likely to add to such pressures for both the wider 

sector and for Hammersmith and Fulham.  The financial resilience of many 

authorities will be further tested.  The position over the longer term is 

uncertain. 

Page 23



Brexit Briefing 

 

 

8.4 As a member of the EU, the UK has access to the European Investment Bank 

(EIB) and the European Investment Fund (EIF).  Losing both these revenue 

streams could have a significant impact on the delivery of big infrastructure 

projects as well as start-ups across the UK.   

8.5 In the event of a no-deal Brexit that results in a negative impact on H&F in this 

financial year we will make use of the general contingency in the 2019/20 

budget, which currently stands at some £2.5m.  A negative impact on the 

2020/21 budget will be mitigated by the reprioritisation of reserves, s106/CIL 

funding and Capital budgets. 

 

9. MHCLG EU Exit Funds 

 

9.1 The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government has made 

available funds amounting to £314,984 for each primary authority to assist in 

mitigating the negative impacts of Brexit.  The allocation of over a third of 

these funds has been agreed by the Cabinet Member for the Economy and 

the Arts, as set out in Appendix 1 (a further £15,000 was previously allocated 

for the costs of a leaflet drop and information stall at CommUNITY Day 2019).   

 

9.2 The overall costs of Brexit to the borough are unknowable.  When the staff 

time of council employees assessing and preparing for the impact of Brexit, 

and the opportunity costs of public and private investment not made in H&F 

are included, it will be many multiples of this figure. 

 

  

Page 24



Brexit Briefing 

 

Appendix 1 

 

Project Actions  Cost 
 

CommUNITY Day Rally and arts festival in Ravenscourt Park, held 
on 21 July. 
Promotion included a leaflet drop to all 
households informing residents of the application 
process for the Settlement Scheme and of the 
advice and assistance available to them, 
including the free scanning and verification of 
documents for H&F residents.  A stall was set up 
at the rally and festival to offer advice to EU 
citizens and to distribute an information flyer. 

£15,000 
 
 

Support and advice 
on EU Settlement 
Scheme application 
process 
 

Specialist adviser to be placed in H&F Citizens 
Advice. 
Awareness raising events such as workshops will 
aim to reach 1150-1200 EU citizens in the 
borough who might require advice and 
assistance. 1:1 support will be provided to 300 
residents in completing application forms. 

£45,000 

Support and advice 
on EU Settlement 
Scheme application 
process 
 

Specialist adviser to be placed in the Law 
Centre. 
Planned activities: advice and assistance 
sessions via booked appointments; training for 
other agencies and council employees to identify 
clients to refer for assistance; public legal 
education meetings; information leaflets; detailed 
information on the website. 

£49,983 

Support and advice 
for businesses 

An H&F delivered support programme including 
group sessions, diagnostic 1:1 sessions and 
mentoring support for businesses who need 
more intensive guidance.  

£6,000 

Scanning and 
verification of 
documents and 
provisions for 
foreign visits 

The Civic Events team are providing free 
scanning and verification of documents for H&F 
residents, the demand for which is likely to 
increase once the specialist advisers are in post.  
Civic Events are also providing shields and pins 
for an increasing number of visits of foreign 
delegates.  After Brexit it will be increasingly 
important to maintain relationships with 
European municipalities, as well as forging new 
relationships beyond Europe. 

£10,000 

Total  £125,983 

 

 

September 2019 

Peter Smith 

Policy & Strategy/PSR 

Page 25



Reviewed 20-03-2019

Issue Service Areas Theme Issue Short 

term

Medium 

term

Long 

term

mitigations further actions

0-4 

weeks

5-20 

weeks

21-52 

weeks
1 PSR and Corporate 

Procurement

Contracts/contractor No direct control of third party supplies Review of Suppliers Business Continuity Plans 

and specifically Brexit inserts, download current 

contracts register and keep under review, 

enforce contract conditions, source alternate 

suppliers/markets. All Services have been 

requested to have dialogue with their Critical 

Suppliers regarding Brexit preparedness. 

Monitor financial markets and use creditsafe 

reports to spot emerging trends. Utilise the 

existing Key Decision process if necessary for 

rapid approvals.

Programme 

Management 

Board/Office To 

monitor existing 

and planned major 

transformation 

programmes 

(Techtonic, WKSR, 

EDCity) for Brexit 

related impacts  

2 Corporate Property, 

Growth and Place

Supply Chain Parts for heating and cooling equipment Our recent strategy for Housing and Facilites 

Management has moved away from a single 

source supplier improving our access to 

alternate supplies and stocks. Stockpile critical 

M&E equipment if considered of concern and 

practical.

Service Owners and 

Contract managers 

to review the 

possibility of 

alternative 

suppliers.

3 Coroner's Services Supply Chain Parts for post mortem or body storage facilities W Sherry & Sons, Dignity or Co-Op Funerals can 

move bodies should there be a loss of one 

partner. UK wide shortage of pathologists but 

the following sources are available.

Pathology Group

Tel: 020 7456 1450

Email: info@pathologygroup.co.uk. Nutwell 

Logistics tel: 01985 846 229

Impact

h&f Corporate Brexit 

Issues Log 

P
age 26



4 Children's Services Education Attendance at schools Monitor workforce and leave arrangements to 

ensure continuity of cover as there may be 

difficulties for staff on leave returning to the UK.

5 Children's Services Workforce Special Needs Transport driver and escort 

availability

Service Owners with the Contracts and 

Procurement Service to seek alternative 

suppliers in the market. The Council can utilise 

its Vendor Neutral Agency Firm Pertemps to 

provide cover.
6 Children's Services/Social 

Care

Supply Chain Just in time delivery of fresh fruit and vegetables 

Meals and Wheels, Schools and our local Markets

                 A list of the key contractors who supply the 

Council has been downloaded from the 

CapitalESoucing system. Confirmation of any 

priority goods requirements will be necessary if 

pressures escalate. 

Monitoring of the Statistical data gathered on 

DEFRA's website ( Commodity Prices and Weekly 

average Wholesale Fruit and Vegetable prices ) 

in the event of BREXIT related inflation.

The Business Continuity Manager has 

ascertained the distribution network for the 

local Foodbank scheme in the extreme event 

that this has to be expanded due to rising 

demands.

Following the 

recent collapse of 

Interserve the 

Council is 

evaluating options 

that may include 

conducting a re-

procurement.

Social Care and 

Children's Services 

to review special 

needs. Contract 

managers to seek re-

assurance of their 

capabilities of a 

continued service. 

Engage the 

Council's 

Communication's 

Team and provide 

messages of re-

assurance.

7 Residents Services Finance Income - drop in revenue from EU visitors Monitor  any significant drops in revenue and its 

potential effect on the Council's Medium Term 

Financial Plan. These should become apparent in 

the existing Corporate Revenue Monitoring 

reports.

P
age 27



8 Residents Services Environment Collection of recyclable material processed 

through the EU

Bulky waste treatment and waste wood are 

materials that rely on EU disposal, so the 

collection of these materials may be suspended 

to prevent blocking waste infrastructure.

Monitor the current contract in place for Waste 

and Refuse collection with Serco and also other 

contracts which may be construction related. 

Additional guidance may emerge from the 

Department of the Environment and Rural 

Affairs.

9 Residents Services Regulatory New UK Trading Standards certification, 

regulation, licensing or inspection

Monitoring of news and updates issued from the 

Department for Business, Energy & Industrial 

Strategy, specifically safety and security, 

documentation, standards, and controlled 

products. 

Additional staffing 

resources covering 

the introduction of 

new systems and 

processes, bid for 

additional 

resources from 

government

10 Finance and Governance Finance Recovery of Parking fines debt from EU citizens Monitor - to be addressed.

11 Growth and Place Housing Increase in homelessness (EU remainers and 

former ex-pats)

Monitor statistics on the levels of reported 

homeless. 
12 Growth and Place Workforce Pressures from construction industry (EU 

workforce skills shortage)

The Council has made provision in its Housing 

and Facilities Management Services to have 

more that one contractor available to call-off.

13 Growth and Place Finance Increased costs of supplies due to Tariffs on 

contractors imports

Be firm on Contractors Terms and Conditions. 

Monitor Tariff implementations closely, 

specifically key project implications is applicable. 

Indications are that an additional +40% maybe 

incurred on certain supplies. 

Cases where contractors are seeking uplifts to be 

robustly challenged and evidenced prior to sign-

off by Cabinet Members.

P
age 28



14 All departments Supply Chain Fuel, Oil and Energy Supply The Council purchases electric and gas a year in 

advance, impact only felt later on however their 

may be inflationery effects on the Council's 

contractors/suppliers that could eventually feed 

back to the Council through Contract pricing

Monitor contract 

requests for uplifts. 

If pressures mount 

the Council can 

prioritise fuel in 

order of Priority 1 

services 1st. 

15 All departments Information Free flow of data to the UK from EU Hosted 

servers

Information Asset Register, Increased rigour to 

ensure existing and new contracts meet General 

Data Protection Regulations, Privacy Impact 

Assessments are being undertaken where 

extensions or new contracts are being awarded.

16 All departments Civil protection Public disorder Representatives of the Council now liaise and 

meet with the Met. Police regularly. Community 

cohesion, Tension monitoring is conducted by 

the PREVENT Team, Corporate Communication, 

Emergency Planning and use of the Council's 

G.I.S. system in the event of disorder.

17 Residents Services Prevent Potential for increasing hate crimes related to 

exiting the EU

Monitor - Liaise with MPS M06 / Community 

Support / and all other relevant parties.

18 All departments Customer Peak in demand of enquiries Monitor - the Director of Residents Services has 

established a monitoring system that establishes 

trends. The general direction of these has been 

reducing however the system is now in place to 

determine if there is a significant upsurge in 

requests for information, complaints enquiries 

etc. following Brexit.

19 Residents Services Highways Increased traffic and congestion due to use of 

London airports for airfreight

Monitor.

The Council's G.I.S. system can rapidly access the 

necessary road and rail netwroks through 

overlays. These can be used by the Council's 

Service Resilience Group in the event of any 

major traffic issues that arise.  

P
age 29



20 Finance and Governance Human Resource Increased demand in Legal advice pertaining to 

contracts

Monitor - the Director of Legal and Governance 

has been advised to note any significant increase 

in contract management work. The Council has 

existing supply arrangements that use an 

external Legal company for contracts. This 

provides some flexibility for any urgent decision 

making required relating to Brexit.

21 Finance and Governance Finance Volatility in financial markets and impact on 

investments and inflation

Work with partners  to support calls for 

devolved fiscal powers to London Authorities 

which could help address Brexit related risks to 

the council’s finances.

Pensions and Treasury advisors keep the Council 

appraised of potential impacts to investments.

22 All departments Regeneration Capabilities to partner with former EU partners 

for regeneration or investment 

Largely unknown exposure albeit the 

Government will undewrite some former EU 

funded projects however this may impact 

contractors and the supply chain.

Growth and Place 

and FM to ensure   

dialogue continues 

with strategic 

partners.

23 Finance and Governance Finance Current budget predictions and estimates may 

need revising in year affecting the immediate 

MTFS

Ongoing monitoring of  financial markets. 

Corporate Finance to consider the implications 

of any post Brexit Government emergency 

budget.
24 Finance and Governance Finance Potential for the UK to be downgraded further by 

the credit agencies leading to higher borrowing 

costs

Monitor. 

25 Growth and Place Finance Economic downturn may lead to an increase in 

empty commercial units

Monitoring through existing monthly financial 

reporting. Escalation if a trend emerges to the 

Council's Finance Board.

P
age 30



26 Corporate Services Workforce Failure of critical or essential services due to a lack 

of staff

Individual Priority 1 / Priority 2 services to report 

immediate impact. If significant a Service 

Resilience Group will convene to determine any 

re-allocation of  Priority 3 / Priority 4 staff, 

where practical, to take on Priority 1 / Priority 2 

services.

A core Service 

Resilience Group 

comprising the 

members of the 

Strategic Leadership 

Team  and chaired 

by the Chief 

Executive will 

convene if deemed 

significant.

27 Corporate Services Finance A tightening labour market could result in an 

upward pressure on wages, bringing about 

additional costs to the council.

Staffing recruitment and retention projects 

include a programme of learning and 

development  to keep key staff however the 

pressure on wages may arise over the medium 

term. 
28 Corporate Services Workforce Lack of skill base and lack of suitably qualified 

staff in Care Services

Safeguarding issues will not be tolerated, the 

Council has already contacted suppliers and 

sought assurances through its Commissioning 

Service that existing providers continue to meet 

proper standards

Commissioning will 

seek alternative 

agencies thorugh 

any alternate 

sourcing strategy 

that have the 

necessary skill base 

should the impact 

cannot be 

managed.

29 Public Health Supply Chain Supply of medicines and equipment Keep apprised of the Department of Health and 

Social Care on changes. Services that require 

medicines / equipment to prioritise where this is 

required - relevant Service Continuity Plans 

should have strategies for these suppliers. 

Service Owners with Contract managers to 

review alternative suppliers. Seek advice from 

PHE.

The Business Continuity Manager has identified 

the local area network of Pharmacists in the 

event of supply distribution issues emerging in 

one area of the borough. 

P
age 31



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

FINANCE, COMMERCIAL REVENUE AND 
CONTRACTS POLICY AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

COMMITTEE 
23 September 2019 

 
 

CIVIC CAMPUS PROGRAMME – SEPTEMBER UPDATE 
 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Finance and the Cabinet Member for the 
Economy – Councillors Max Schmid and Andrew Jones 
 

Open Report 
 

Classification - For Information 
Key Decision: No 
 

Consultation 
All Council Departments 
 

Wards Affected: All 
 

Accountable Directors: 
Hitesh Jolapara, Strategic Director Finance and Governance 
Jo Rowlands, Strategic Director for the Economy 
 

Report Authors: 
David Burns, Assistant Director - Growth 
Emily Hill, Assistant Director Corporate 
Finance 
 

Contact Details: 
david.burns@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

Emily.hill@lbhf.gov.uk  
 

  

Page 32

Agenda Item 5

mailto:david.burns@lbhf.gov.uk
mailto:Emily.hill@lbhf.gov.uk


  

  

 

 
 

CIVIC CAMPUS PROGRAMME 

 

September Update 
 

Page 33



1 Programme Update 
 
 

Management summary RAG status 

Summary Programme 
Status 

Milestones Budget Risks 

This reporting 
period 

GREEN GREEN GREEN AMBER 

Last reporting 
period 

GREEN GREEN GREEN AMBER 

 
The programme is developing as planned and is on track.  We are currently 
forecasting a small underspend against the budget. However, this may improve as 
the decant programme completes and reconciliation of budgets is completed.  
 
The overall programme is made up of 3 distinct phases: 
 
Phase 1 – Office Decant – the decant of 1,400 staff from the Town Hall and Town 
Hall Extension into new office locations, to Shortlands, Clockwork, 145 King Street 
and 43 Beavor Lane. 
 
Staff decant commenced on the 14 June, on programme, and a subsequent 10 week 
decant phase has now been completed. The final move of office staff from the Town 
Hall and Town Hall Extension completed on 31 August including the relocation of 
customer services to 145 King Street as planned. Over 1,400 staff have been 
relocated to new offices without service interruption. There is a small group of staff 
waiting to relocate to 43 Beavor Lane upon installation of a BT fibre line, which is 
due by the beginning of October. The programme team have mitigated any impact of 
this delay and the next phase has commenced on programme, on the 1 September 
as planned 
 
Phase 2 – Demolition and Enabling works - This involves initial surveys (e.g intrusive 
asbestos and structural surveys), soft strip and final demolition of the site (Town Hall 
Extension only) in preparation for main works contract to process. 
 
The demolition contractor has been procured and started on site on the 1 
September, on programme. Hoardings have been erected and there is now no public 
access to the Town Hall and Town Hall Extension. Surveys have commenced and 
the demolition contractor is mobilising ahead of internal works, soft strip and 
structural demolition works. Structural demolition is due to start in December and will 
last five months completing in April 2020. This phase has commenced on 
programme.  
 
Phase 3 – Main works – This sets out the design development, procurement of a 
main contractor and start on site. 
 

RIBA Stage 3 design is due to complete in September 2019. Contractor procurement 

will commence in October 2019, on programme, with tenders due back in December 

2019. This will enable the Joint Venture (JV) to appoint a contractor in February 

Page 34



2020. The contractor will commence the first phase of works under a Pre-

Construction Services Agreement (PCSA) to complete the design and construction 

works plan, and complete any necessary enabling works. Enabling works will 

commence from February 2020, with main construction programmed to start on site 

in June 2020, on programme. 

2 Budget update 
 
In January 2019, Full Council approve the following recommendations for the Civic 
Campus programme:  
 

1) A decant budget and other enabling costs budget of £36,734,027, after the 

delivery of related savings. 

 

2) A capital budget of up to £45.6m for the refurbishment and fit out of the Town 

Hall building (including the new extension).  

 

Budget Item Approved Budget Actual Expenditure 
- Aug 2019 

Forecast Variance 

Decant & 
Accommodation 

 £36,734,027   £7,359,758   £36,689,996   £ (44,031) 

Town Hall 
Refurbishment  

 £38,800,000   £163,589   £38,800,000   £ -  

Town Hall Fit 
Out 

 £6,800,000   £-  £6,800,000   £ -  

Total  £82,334,027   £7,523,347   £82,289,996   £ (44,031) 

 
 
The decant is now complete and we are finalising accounts with the contractors. The 
budget is currently forecasting an underspend. However, the Council has taken a 
prudent approach to its forecasts in relation to some key items of spend. In 
particular, the Council has acquired new furniture for the temporary offices, and it is 
of a robust and high-quality nature. Therefore, when the Civic Campus works are 
completed, the Council expects to be able to transfer the majority of this furniture into 
the new and refurbished buildings. This would have the effect of a) reducing the 
forecast expenditure on decant accommodation, and b) reducing the amount that is 
assumed to be spent on furniture as part of the Town Hall fit out.  
 
At present, the budgets cautiously assume that these costs are part of the decant 
accommodation budget, and the furniture element of the fit-out budget will also be 
used, which is effectively held against the decant contingency at present. 
Programme team and finance colleagues will review this element together to provide 
a risk-based forecast on the allocation of furniture costs.  
 
The Full Council report identified initial funding proposals for the budgets above and 
delegated the final funding to officers in consultation with Cabinet members to 
enable options to be explored to reduce as far as possible any call on Council 

Page 35



reserves (in respect of the decant costs) and to provide flexibility should Community 
Infrastructure Levy payments not be received as planned (in respect of the 
refurbishment and fit out costs).  
 
The Policy and Accountability Committee will be aware that officers are undertaking 
a review of the use of Council’s reserves. The funding of costs relating to the Civic 
Campus programme have been included in that review. Officers are considering all 
possible options for funding Civic Campus programme and decant costs with a view 
to reducing the call on general fund reserves, this includes the potential for 
capitalisation of elements of the programme and decant and ensuring the HRA is 
charged an appropriate share of the costs. The outcome of this work will be reported 
to the next Committee meeting as planned (in December).   
 
Further work also is being completed on forecasting the availability of CIL receipts to 
fund the capital budget, where these are not available the works will be funded from 
borrowing.  
 
A further analysis of current financial performance is set out in Appendix 1. 

          

3 Joint Venture Responsibilities. 
 
In January 2019, Full Council approved the following recommendations related to the 
Civic Campus Programme Joint Venture:  
 

1. That the Council enters into a Joint Venture (JV) partnership with A2Dominion 

Developments Ltd. (A2DD), for the purposes of delivering the WKSR 

Programme; 

 
2. That the Council approves the conditional sale of Council land shown in the 

plan attached at Appendix 1 to the JV partnership (Council and A2DD), in 

exchange for a 50% share in the JV, subject to approval of the final best 

consideration valuation report by the Chief Executive, as recommended by 

the Head of Asset Strategy and Property Portfolio and advised by the 

Strategic Director, Finance and Governance; 

 
3. That the Council approves development funding of up to £90 million to the JV 

partnership (Council and A2DD), in accordance with state aid compliant 

market terms following receipt of state aid advice from professional advisors, 

to be funded from an increase in the Capital Financing Requirement until the 

loan is repaid. 

 

LBHF proposes to dispose of land, including Hammersmith Town Hall Extension and 

adjacent land, the former car park on Nigel Playfair Avenue, the former registry 

office, the former cinema site, and the Quaker’s Meeting House. The land will be 

Page 36



disposed of to a Joint Venture Limited Liability Partnership (“JV LLP”). The JV LLP 

will be a newly formed an entity, owned on a 50:50 basis by A2 Dominion (“A2D”) 

and LBHF.  

The Council is intending to dispose of the land to the JV LLP by way of a Conditional 

Agreement for Lease (“CAL”). The CAL is subject to a number of condition 

precedents, covering matters such as planning, letting of a building contract, funding, 

which have to be satisfied before the lease becomes unconditional and the land can 

transfer (this offers the Council the security that the scheme will be delivered before 

any land transfers).  

Once formed the JV will be responsible for managing and delivering all the works. 

However, there will be 2 separate contracts put in place 

 Contract 1 – Refurbishment of the Town Hall – LBHF funded 

 

 Contract 2 – 204 residential units with 52% being affordable housing, a new 
6,000 m2 office block, a cinema, retail and flexible B1 workspace and the 
provision of an extension to the existing grade 2 listed Town Hall – JV funded 

The JV will be responsible for delivery of all aspects of the works and the 
development management and delivery of both contracts. The Town Hall (including 
the new extension) will be the first project completed and released from the JV in 
April 2022. 

Until the JV LLP is formed, A2 Dominion are funding consultant fees for the design 
and project management, and once the JV is formed contracts will be assigned to 
the JV where appropriate (alongside the appropriate collateral warranties).  

4 JV and Council’s Financial Responsibilities 
 

Page 37



 

The financial implications of the above were set out in the January Full Council 

report and related to the land value (£25.3m), value of new extension (£25.3m) and 

the estimated profit expected from the JV (£11.1m) and were based on the financial 

model for the scheme at that time. The report confirmed that the land valuation 

would need to be revisited at the time of the land sale and the costs and 

assumptions within the financial model are being reviewed. Updated figures will be 

provided when these are available. Under the programme, the land is due to transfer 

in June 2020, and an update can be provided at that time. 

5 Governance 
 
The progress of the project is monitored and scrutinised by a number of formal 
Boards.  
 
The programme reports to: 
 

1) Programme Board – Chaired by the CEO, the Board sits monthly to review 

progress, budgetary control and design development.  

2) LBHF Programme Management Office (PMO) reporting – Chaired by senior 

LBHF officer, the group reviews and scrutinises project progress, project 

controls and delivery milestones. 

3) LBHF Finance Policy and Accountability Committee (PAC) 

4) LBHF Audit, Pensions and Standards Committee. 

 
In addition to this the Council has employed its own Contract Administrator (Currie & 
Brown) who has a responsibility to monitor progress, the administration of each 
contract with particular focus on the Town Hall refurbishment and validate and 

Page 38



challenge cost and expenditure across the programme. The Council has also 
retained BNP Paribas who will advise the Council on land valuation. 

Page 39



PROJECT NAME Civic Campus 
Programme

REPORT DATE
12/09/2019

PROJECT STATUS
On track

PROGRAMME COMPLETED
25%

TASKS RAG STATUS PRIORITY
PRROGRAMM
E STATUS

Decant Scoping & Enabling Works G COMPLETE

Decant Construction Works - 
Clockworks

G COMPLETE

Decant Construction Works - 
Shortlands

G COMPLETE

Specialist Construction Works - 145 
King Street

G COMPLETE

Decant Move Programme G COMPLETE
Final Office Clearance G ★ IN PROGRESS

Demolition Period G ★ IN PROGRESS

Main Works Procurement & 
Appointment 

G ★ IN PROGRESS

Main Works Construction Period G ★ IN PROGRESS

Buidling Handover G ★ IN PROGRESS

 

10/05/2016 22/09/2017 04/02/2019 18/06/2020 31/10/2021 15/03/2023 27/07/2024

Decant Scoping & Enabling Works

Decant Construction Works - Clockworks

Decant Construction Works - Shortlands

Specialist Construction Works - 145 King Street

Decant Move Programme

Final Office Clearance

Demolition Period

Main Works Procurement & Appointment

Main Works Construction Period

Buidling Handover

Programme End Date

£36,734,027 £38,800,000 

£6,800,000 £7,359,758 

£163,589 £-

£36,689,996 
£38,800,000 

£6,800,000 

£(44,031)

£- £-

 £(5,000,000)

 £-

 £5,000,000

 £10,000,000

 £15,000,000

 £20,000,000

 £25,000,000

 £30,000,000

 £35,000,000

 £40,000,000

 £45,000,000

WKSR Decant & Building
Accommodation

Town Hall Refurbishment Town Hall Fit Out

Civic Campus Budget Update

Approved Budget

Programme Managers Update 
General - The WSKR programme continues to remain on programme and under budget. The decant phase commenced on 17th June and has now 
completed with the relocation of 1400 staff from the existing town hall and town hall extension into new premises. This relocation has included the 
refurbishment and relocation of the Council's customer facing services into 145KS. All relocations have been completed with no impact on Business 
continuity.

Town Hall Refurbishment - Surveys have commenced and the demolition contractor is mobilising ahead of internal works, soft strip and structural 
demolition works, which is on programme to complete in April 2020. Procurement of a contractor will commence in October having had initial market 
engagement and a shortlist of 4-5 possible Tenderers identified. The design is ongoing and following a short extension of the Stage 3 design phase to 
enable enhanced energy strategy option design will be progressing to stage 4 in October. The current cost plan is on budget and the project is currently 
completing the value engineering process at the end of Stage 3 design to identify potential savings and cost reduction.

 £-

 £10,000,000

 £20,000,000

 £30,000,000

 £40,000,000

 £50,000,000

 £60,000,000

 £70,000,000

 £80,000,000

 £90,000,000

N
ov

-1
8

D
ec

-1
8

Ja
n-

19

Fe
b-

19
M

ar
-1

9

Ap
r-

19

M
ay

-1
9

Ju
n-

19

Ju
l-1

9

Au
g-

19
Se

p-
19

O
ct

-1
9

N
ov

-1
9

D
ec

-1
9

Ja
n-

20
Fe

b-
20

M
ar

-2
0

Ap
r-

20

M
ay

-2
0

Ju
n-

20

Ju
l-2

0
Au

g-
20

Se
p-

20

O
ct

-2
0

N
ov

-2
0

D
ec

-2
0

Ja
n-

21

Fe
b-

21

M
ar

-2
1

Ap
r-

21

M
ay

-2
1

Ju
n-

21
Ju

l-2
1

Au
g-

21

Se
p-

21

O
ct

-2
1

N
ov

-2
1

D
ec

-2
1

Ja
n-

22

Fe
b-

22

M
ar

-2
2

Ap
r-

22

M
ay

-2
2

Ju
n-

22

Ju
l-2

2

Au
g-

22

Civic Campus Budget Update

Cumulative Total Forecast Expenditure Cumulative Total Actual Decant Forecast Town Hall Refurb Forecast Town Hall Fit Out Forecast

£7,523,346 

£8,000,000

£82,289,996 

Civic Campus Budget Update

Actuals to Aug 19 Forecast to Aug 19 Total Budget

Phase 1 - Decant.                        Phase 2 - Demolition & Enabling Works.                        Phase 3 - Build

TODAY

P
age 40



WORK PROGRAMME 2019 – 2020   
 
Summer 2019 agenda  

Topic Lead Officer Date 
requested 

Meeting 
Date 

Section 106 Update Report  
 

 Future receipts vs Committed funds update 

 Update on earmarked funds 

 Report on s106 community benefits  

 Update on s106 projects over £1 million 

Jo Rowlands/ 
Joanne 
Woodward 

November 
2018 

July 2019 

West King Street Renewal Programme Update Jo Rowland February 
2019 

 

Ways of working linking IT and new offices  - 
To combine Work styles and patterns and IT 
Desktop Strategy 

Mark Grimley 
and Veronica 
Barella 

July 2018 July 2019 

 

Unallocated 

 How the Council will reduce staffing by 25% 
over 5 years (Part of ZBB report). 

 Workforce retention piece – ensuring a 
stable and reliable workforce. 

 A report back on staff motivation levels. 

Martin Calleja November 
2018 

 
 
Reports to 
PSR 
Committee 

Zero Based Budgeting Martin Calleja February 
2019 

November 
2019  

Mitie repairs in house, what’s drove the 
decision, what was the previous spend, what is 
the future anticipated spend, what financial 
controls are in place etc. 

Jo Rowland November 
2018 

November 
2019  

IT – including major contracts and how a 
modern council can use IT to engage / interface 
with residents. IT would be a good area to 
encourage residents with expert knowledge to 
inform our strategy. 

Veronica 
Barella 

September 
2018 

 

Lessons learned on major issues from other 
Council’s.  

Relevant 
Service 
Directors 

September 
2018 

 

Longer term financial planning (10+ years) and 
investment strategies. 

Hitesh 
Jolapara 

September 
2018 

 

Developing an operating model for the 
organisation. 

 September 
2018 

 

Ideas on how to involve the public in setting the 
budget and prioritising spend. 

Hitesh November 
2018 

 

A large capital project to be brought to the 
committee for scrutiny. 

Service 
Director  

November 
2018 

 

Lesson learnt on from savings delivered and the 
consequences – how delivery was monitored, 
any unintended consequences/ costs elsewhere 
(e.g. look at last 3 years’ savings and mention 
improvements to process) 

Hitesh 
Jolapara 

July 2018  

 

Page 41

Agenda Item 6


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	4 Brexit Impact Report
	Appendix 1 - Brexit Briefing 9
	Appendix 2 - Corporate Brexit Issues Log

	5 Civic Campus Programme - September Update
	Appendix 1 - Dashboard

	6 Committee Work Programme

